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1.  INTRODUCTION

L1 On June §, 2003, February 20, 2004 and October 13, 2004, the Environmental Law
Foundation (“ELF”), individually and on behalf of the general public, filed complaints for civil
penalties, restitution and injunctive relief in San Francisco County Superior Court (“Court”) in
actions entitled, respectively, Environmental Law Foundation v. Cost Plus, Inc, et. al., Case No.
CGC-03-421108, Environmental Law Foundation v. Borges USA Inc., et. al., Case No. 04-428945
and Environmental Law Foundation v. Albeco, Inc., Case No. 04-4235440. On March 1, 2005, the
Court consolidated these three actions, with ELF v, Cost Plus serving as the lead case. For
purposes of this Consent Judgment, the term “Action” shall reference the consolidated actions
identified above,

1.2 Borges USA, Inc., Colavita USA, L.L.C., H.J. Heinz Co., Lettieri & Co., Ltd.,
Mizkan Americas, Inc. (formerly known as Nakano Foods, Inc.), Rao’s Specialty Foods, Inc.,
Sapori d’Italia, Inc., Source Atlantique, Incorporated, Spectrum Organic Products, Inc., Tree Of
Life, Inc., and Vigo Importing Co. (collectively, “Supplier Defendants™); Albertsons, Inc.,!
Raley’s, Ralphs Grocery Company, Bell Markets, Cala Foods, Inc., The Kroger Company, Inter-
American Foods, Inc., Safeway Inc., The Vons Companies, Wild Oats Markets, Inc., and
Williams-Sonoma, Inc. (collectively, the “Retailer Defendants”; and, together with the Supplier
Defendants, the “Settling Defendants™) each sell Wine Vinegars to persons in the State of
California and are defendants named in the complaints (“Complaints™) filed in the actions listed in

Section 1.1 of this Consent Judgment.’ In addition to the aforementioned companies, the

1 Albertson's, Inc. was the subject of plaintiffs’' 60 day notice and complaint in this matter. New Albertson's, Inc and
Albertson's LLC are executing this consent judgment as the succeeding owners of Albertson’s, Inc's California stores.
Accordingly, New Albertson's, Inc and Albertson's LLC are Settling Defendants and Retailer Defendants hereunder. For
New Albertson's, Inc and Albertson's LLC, the releases in this consent judgment apply only to the Albertson's, Inc stores
they acquired, and any additional Albertson's stores these entities may open prior to entry of this judgment.

2 The Liberty Richter division of Tree of Life, Inc. was erroneously named by the plaintiff as “Liberty Richter, Inc.” in
this Action; all of Tree of Life, Inc.’s various divisions, brands, and subsidiaries are Supplier Defendants and Settling
Defendants hereunder. Spectrum Organic Products, Inc. was acquired by The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. after the filing
of the Action and became a wholly owned subsidiary, Spectrum Organi¢ Products, L..L.C. Sapori d’Italia, Inc. was
named by ELF in its March 26, 2004 60-day notice letter and will be deemed to have been named in the Action
concurrently with it becoming a Supplier Defendant and Settling Defendant upon the entry of this Consent Judgment; as
set forth above, its parent, Domenico Manca S.p.A., is also becoming a Supplier Defendant and Settling Defendant
hereunder. After originally being named by ELF in the Action, Rao’s Specialty Foods, Inc., and Source Atlantique,
Incorporated were previously dismissed from the Action , but based on their stipulation to the terms set forth herein, both
will, concurrently with the entry of this Consent Judgment with the Court, nevertheless be deemed to have been re-
named in the Action and to be Supplier Defendants and Settling Defendants hereunder.
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following shall be deemed to have been named in this Action and to be full Supplier Defendants
and Settling Defendants hereunder as of J anuary 15, 2007,3 provided that neither the California
Attorney General, a California District Attorney, or a City Attorney of a California city having a
population exceeding 750,000 has filed a complaint against them alleging violations of Proposition
635 with respect to lead in Wine Vinegar: Acetificio M. de Nigris s.r.1., Domenico Manca S.p.A.,
Italfoods, Inc., Monari Federzoni, S.p.A., Ponti, S.p.A., Toshi Vignola SRL, and World Finer
Foods, Inc.' For purposes of this Consent Judgment, the term “Wine Vinegar” shall mean any
vinegar that contains wine as a constituent, while the term “Red Wine Vinegar” shall mean any
balsamic vinegar and any vinegar that contains red wine as a constituent,

1.3 Inits Complaints, ELF alleges that the Settling Defendants manufactured, distributed
and/or sold Wine Vinegar containing lead in an amount that resulted in an exposure to consumers
in violation of the provisions of Health and Safety Code §§ 25249.5 et seq. (“Proposition 65”) and
Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq. (“Unfair Competition Law”) by knowingly and
intentionally exposing persons to a chemical known to the State of California to cause
reproductive toxicity, namely lead, without first providing a clear and reasonable warning to such
individuals.

1.4 For purposes of this Consent Judgment only, ELF and Settling Defendants (hereafter
referred to as the “Parties”), stipulate that this Court has jurisdiction over allegations of violations
contained in the Complaints and personal jurisdiction over the Settling Defendants as to the acts
alleged in the Complaints, that venue is proper in the County of San Francisco and that this Court
has jurisdiction to enter this Consent Judgment as a resolution of all claims which could have been
raised in the Complaints based on the facts alleged therein.

1.5 Each Settling Defendant denies the allegations set forth in the Complaints.

3 The date identified above represents the first day following the running of the notice period associated with the 60-day
notice ELF issued to Acetificio M. de Nigris s.r.l., Domenico Manca S.p.A., Italfoods, Inc., Monari Federzoni, S.p.A.,
Ponti, S.p.A., Toshi Vignola SRL, and World Finer Foods, Inc. on November 14, 2006.

4 Taormina Sales Company, Inc. serves as the exclusive U.S. agent and distributor for Acetificio M. de Nigris s.r.l. and,
as such, is among the intended beneficiaries of section 7.1 below.
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1.6  For the purpose of avoiding prolonged litigation, the Parties enter into this Consent
Judgment as a full settlement of all claims that were raised in the Complaints based on the facts
alleged therein, or which could have been raised in the Complaints arising out of the facts alleged
therein. By execution of this Consent Judgment, no Settling Defendant admits any violations of
Proposition 65 or the Unfair Competition Law or any other law and specifically denies that it has
committed any such violations and maintains that all Wine Vinegar products that it has sold and
distributed in California have been and are in compliance with all laws. Nothing in this Consent
Judgment shall be construed as an admission by any Settling Defendant of any fact, finding,
conclusion, issue of law, or violation of law. However, this paragraph shall not diminish or affect

the responsibilities and duties of the Parties under this Consent Judgment.

I 2. CLEAR AND REASONABLE WARNINGS

2.1  The only Wine Vinegars for which warnings are required under Proposition 65 are
those Red Wine Vinegars that contain lead in excess of 34 parts per billion (*“ppb”). Other Wine
Vinegars shall not necessitate warnings for lead under Proposition 65.

22  Warning Standard For Retailer Defendants Selling Red Wine Vinegars. No later
than ninety (90) days after entry of this Consent Judgment, each Retailer Defendant shall not sell or
offer for sale in its California stores any Red Wine Vinegars that contain lead at levels that exceed
34 ppb unless warnings are given in accordance with Sections 2.2(a) or 2.2(b) of this Consent
Judgment.

a. Shelf Warning. A Retailer Defendant may provide a warning by placing a
notice on the top shelf of each rack of shelves in its stores in California where Red Wine Vinegars
are sold. The warning shall state:

“CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 WARNING:

The Red Wine Vinegars and Balsamic Vinegars on this shelf
contain lead, a chemical known to the State of California to cause
birth defects or other reproductive harm.”

or
“CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 WARNING:
The Red Wine Vinegars and Balsamic Vinegars on these shelves

contain lead, a chemical known to the State of California to cause
birth defects or other reproductive harm.”
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Each sign shall be no smaller than 2.25 inches x 5.5 inches, and the form and type shall be
substantially similar to that which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (hereinafter, the “Warning Sign®).

(1) Any Wine Vinegar sold by a Retailer Defendant may be
sold on a shelf that utilizes warnings with the language as described above in paragraph 2.2(a)
unless (1) that Retailer Defendant has conducted testing in accordance with the testing requirements
referenced in paragraph 2.6 demonstrating that a particular Wine Vinegar contains lead in an
amount of 34 ppb or less, or (2) has received test data from a supplier from testing conducted in
accordance with the testing requirements referenced in paragraph 2.6 demonstrating that a particular
Wine Vinegar contains lead in an amount of 34 ppb or less. |

(2) Inthe event that a Retailer Defendant has received test data
complying with paragraph 2.2(a)(1) and with the testing requirements referenced in paragraph 2.6
demonstrating that a particular Wine Vinegar contains lead in an amount less than 34 ppb, and a
Retailer Defendant intends to offer such vinegar for sale, the Retailer Defendant shall utilize the
procedures set forth in paragraph 2.6(a).

b. Product Labeling. A warning may be placed on the packaging, labeling or

directly to or on Red Wine Vinegar products by the Retailer Defendant (or someone on the Retailer
Defendant’s behalf, including but not limited to its agents, or the manufacturers, importers or

distributors of the Red Wine Vinegars) that states:

“CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 WARNING:
This product contains lead, a chemical known to the State of
California to cause birth defects or other reproductive harm.”

(hereinafter, “Product Label Warnings™). Product Label Warnings shall be placed with such
conspicuousness as compared with other words, statements, designs and/or devices as to render it
likely to be read and understood by an ordinary individual under customary conditions of use or
purchase. Compliance with the size requirements established for wine label warnings at 27 C.F.R.

§ 16.22 shall be deemed to be compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence.
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¢. Notice: Within 60 days of the entry of this Consent Judgment, each
Retailer Defendant shall provide in writing substantially the following notice to each of its suppliers
of Wine Vinegar:’
“[Retailer Defendant] is a party to a Consent Judgment in the Superior Court of the State of
California that requires [Retailer Defendant] to provide the following warning (the

“Proposition 65 Warning”) to purchasers of red wine and balsamic vinegars:

CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 WARNING:
The Red Wine Vinegars and Balsamic Vinegars on these shelves contain lead,
a chemical known to the State of California to cause birth defects and other

reproductive harm,

The Proposition 65 Warning is not required for any red wine or balsamic vinegar that
contains 34 ppb lead or less, as demonstrated by a required test protocol. If you believe that
any red wine or balsamic vinegar supplied by you contains 34 ppb of lead or less and does
not require a warning for this reason, and you wish to exempt any such vinegar from the
warning requirement, please contact [Contact person at Retailer Defendant] to obtain a
description of the test requirements and procedures that you must follow.”

2.3  Warning Standard For Supplier Defendants Selling Red Wine Vinegars. No
later than ninety (90} days after entry of this Consent Judgment, cach Supplier Defendant shall not

ship or offer to ship into California any Red Wine Vinegars that contain lead at levels that exceed
thirty four (34) ppb unless warnings are given in accordance with Sections 2.3(a) or 2.3(b) of this
Consent Judgment,
a, Each Supplier Defendant or an entity acting on its behalf may, free of
charge, mail to the central purchasing office for distributors and retail stores with whom it
transacts business for sale of Red Wine Vinegar which reasonably may be expected to offer

such Red Wine Vinegar for sale in California (“In-State Distributors and Retailers™): (1) at

5 The notice required by this paragraph need not be given to a supplier who is a Supplier Defendant hereunder.
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least five copies of the Warning Sign, and (2) a letter explaining the warning program and

providing posting instructions. The explanatory letter and posting instructions shall be in a
form substantially equivalent to Exhibits B and C for In-State Distributors and Retailers
respectively. |

Beginning no later than one year and 90 days after entry of this
Consent Judgment, each Supplier Defendant or an entity acting on its behalf shall, free of
charge, at least annually, provide all In-State Distributors and Retailers to whom it
previously sent the signs and instructions described in the preceding paragraph and with
which it continues to do business involving the sale of Red Wine Vinegars, a written
reminder, substantially in the form of Exhibit D, concerning the Warning Program required
under this Consent Judgment and the need for compliance with Proposition. 65 warning
requirements concerning the sale in California of Red Wine Vinegars that contain lead in
excess of the Warning Standard set forth above. The written reminder réquired by the
preceding sentence may be provided by means of letter, postcard or email. Supplier
Defendants shall have no initial or continuing obligations to provide Warning Signs, related
materials, or annual reminders pursuant to this Section 2.3(a) to any In-State Distributor or
Retailer to the extent that they have elected to address their compliance obligations vis-a-vis
that In-State Distributor or Retailer in the manner prescribed by Section 2.3(b) below.

b. Each Supplier Defendant or an entity acting on its behalf may place on-
the packaging, labeling, or directly onto a Red Wine Vinegar product, the Product Labetl
Warning,

c. Should any Supplier Defendant choose to sell Red Wine Vinegar to
any California consumer directly at a retail store it owns or operates within the State of
California, such Supplier Defendant will then be bound by the obligations set forth in Section
2.2 of this Consentl Judgment.

2.4  Any changes to the language or format of the warnings required under Section 2.2

| and/or Section 2.3 shall be made only after Court approval or obtaining ELF’s and the California

Attorney General’s office’s approval. If any Settling Defendant requests a change in language or

6

[PROPOSED] CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO CERTAIN DEFENDANTS
254493.1




O 60 =~ N W B W N e

MNMOOMNONNRNRNN e e e e e e et = e
ggc\m-hwmi—-oxoooqc\m-hmm—ﬂo

format of the warnings and ELF does not respond to that request for at least 90 days, then that
Settling Defendant may submit that request to the Attorney General with notice to ELF and may act
upon subsequent receipt of the Attorney General’s approval.

2.5 A Supplier Defendant may offer to ship for sale within California any Red Wine
Vinegar without 2 warning following ninety (90) days after entry of this Consent Judgment if (1)
that Supplier Defendant has conducted testing in accordance with the testing requirements
referenced in paragraph 2.6 demonstrating that a particular Red Wine Vinegar contains lead in an
amount of 34 ppb or less and otherwise complied with the requirements set forth in that paragraph,
or (2) has received test data from a producer from testing conducted in according with the testing
requirements referenced in paragraph 2.6 demonstrating that a particular Wine Vinegar contains lead
in an amount of 34.ppb or less.

2.6  Testing shall be conducted by a testing laboratory with Environmental Laboratory
Certification from the State of California, Department of Health Services, Environmental Laboratory
Accreditation Program. Settling Defendant may rely on those test results so long as the facility that
performed the tests confirms in writing that it utilized the testing protocol of Professor A. Russell
Flegal, attached hereto as Exhibit E. As used in this Consent Judgment “34 ppb lead or less” means
that 10 samples of each individual product have been tested in accordance with the requirements set
forth in this Consent Judgment and that the individual, raw data, results from thé ten (10) samples
collectively yield an arithmetic mean of 34 ppb lead or less and no more than one individual sample
has a result exceeding 50 ppb lead, regardless of the source of the lead, excepting laboratory
contamination or other contamination having nothing whatsoever to do with the lead content of the
individual product being tested.

a. At least 60 days before any proposed discontinuance of any warnings issued
pursuant to this Consent Judgment, a Settling Defendant proposing such discontinuance shall
provide to ELF the results, the underlying data, and a description of the test methodology used. ELF
shall keep all such information confidential except as is necessary to contest the exception from
warning of the product. Should ELF dispute for any reason the discontinuance of any warning, the
dispute may be submitted by either party to the Court for resolution on motion. Unless and until
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such is resolved favorably to Settling Defendant, the warning in question may not be discontinued.
If there is no objection or the objection is resolved favorably to the Seitling Defendant, future units
of the subject product that tests 34 ppb lead or less shall not be shipped to California bearing a
warning label as prescribed under paragraph 2.2(b) nor be placed on a shelf referenced by a shelf
sign under paragraph 2.2(a).

2.7 Each Settling Defendant’s compliance with Sections 2.1 through 2.6 of this Consent
Judgment shall fully and completely satisfy such Settling Defendant’s obligations to provide
warnings for all Wine Vinegars with respect to the presence of lead under Proposition 65, the
California Business and Professions Code, and all State or local (within California) laws,
regulations, or ordinances.

2.8  Should any court enter a final judgment in a case brought by ELF on behalf of or in
the interest of the people or general public of the State of California involving Wine Vinegars that
allegedly contain lead which sets forth standards defining when Proposition 65 warnings will or will
not be required (“Alternative Standards”), Settling Defendants shall be entitled to seek modification
of this Consent Judgment so as to be able to utilize and rely on such Alternative Standards in lieu of
those set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of this Consent Judgment.

2.9  Should ELF reach a settlement in any of its pending or future lawsuits involving
claims of Proposition 65 violations and Wine Vinegars that permit warnings that are different in
content, method or appearance than is specified under Section 2.2 and Section 2.3 of this Consent
Judgment to be provided, then ELF shall provide each Setiling Defendant with a copy of the
settlement(s), and each Settling Defendant shall, at its discretion, have the option to warn in the
manner prescribed by Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of this Consent Judgment as applicable, or in the manner
specified in the settlement(s) of the other lawsuits.

3. MONETARY RELIEF

3.1 Within fifteen (15) days after entry of this Consent Judgment, Settling Defendants
collectively shall pay ELF a total of four hundred sixty-seven thousand, five hundred dollars
($467,500) as settlement proceeds (“Settlement Proceeds™) to be applied towards ELF’s costs,
attorney’s fees and a cy pres donation. To the extent it has not already done so, each Settling

8

[PROPOSED] CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO CERTAIN DEFENDANTS
254493 1




[FS]

b ZI - - B N B ¥ I N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Defendant shall place the share of the aforementioned amount to which it agreed in conjunction with
the mediation that previously occurred in this Action under the supervision of Judge William Cahill
(Ret.) into the Morrison & Foerster LLP Client Trust Account at the time it executes this Consent
Judgment.® The distribution of these Settlement Proceeds shall be determined by ELF without
interference by the Settling Defendants in conjunction with ELF’s motion for approval of this
Consent Judgment by the Court. The Settlement Proceeds shall be made payable to Bushnell,
Caplan, Fielding & Maier, LLP and delivered to Alan M. Caplan at Bushnell, Caplan, Fielding &
Maier, LLP, 221 Pine Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, California 94104. ELF shall bear all
responsibility for apportioning and paying to the State of California any portion of the Settlement
Proceeds as required by California Health & Safety Code Section 25249.12(d), and no Settling
Defendant shall have any liability if payments to the State of California are not made by ELF.

3.2 The payment made pursuant to Section 3.1 shall be the only monetary obligation of
the Settling Defendants with respect to this Consent Judgment, including as to any fees, costs, or
expenses ELF has incurred in relation to this Action.

4, COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH & SAFETY CODE SECTION 25249.7(f)

4.1  ELF agrees to comply with the reporting requirements referenced in California Health
& Safety Code § 25249.7(f). Pursuant to the regulations promulgated under that section, ELF shall
present this Consent Judgment to the California Attorney General’s Office within two (2) days after
receipt of all necessary signatures. The Parties acknowledge that, pursuant to Health & Safety Code
§ 25249.7, a noticed motion must be filed to obtain judicial approval of the Consent J udgment.
Accordingly, a motion for approval of the settlement shall be prepared and filed by ELF within a
reasonable period of time after the date this Consent Judgment is signed by all Parties. ELF agrees
to serve a copy of the noticed motion to approve and enter the Consent Judgment on the Attorney
General’s Office at least forty-five (45) days prior to the date set for hearing of the motion in the

Superior Court of the City and County of San Francisco.

6 Bank of America Account No. 16642 05584, ABA Routing No. 0260-0959-3, SWIFT No. BOFAUS3N, client/matter
reference number 57346-3.

)
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3. MODIFICATION OF CONSENT JUDGMENT

5.1 This Consent Judgment may be modified by: ( 1) written agreement among the Parties
and upon entry of a modified Consent Judgment by the Court thereon, or (2) motion of ELF or any
of the Settling Defendants as provided by law and upon entry of a modified Consent Judgment by
the Court thereon. All Parties and the California Attormey General’s Office shall be served with

notice of any proposed modification to this Consent Judgment at least fifteen (15) days in advance of

its consideration by the Court.
6. APPLICATION OF CONSENT JUDGMENT

6.1  Each signatory to this Consent Judgment certifies that he or she is fully authorized by
the Party that he or she represents to enter into and execute the Consent Judgment on behalf of the
Party represented and legally bind that Party.

6.2  This Consent Judgment shall apply to and be binding upon ELF and each of the
Settling Defendants, their officers, directors, and shareholders, divisions, subdivisions, parent
entities or subsidiaries, and successors or assigns of each of them.

7. CLAIMS COVERED

7.1 This Consent Judgment is a final and binding resolution between ELF and the
Settling Defendants of any violation of Proposition 65, Business and Professions Code §§ 17200 et
seq., Business and Professions Code §§ 17500 et seq., or any other statutory or common law claim
that could have been asserted against the Settling Defendants for failure to provide clear, reasonable
and lawful warnings of exposures to lead that result from the ingestion of Wine Vinegar. No claim
is reserved as between the Parties hereto, and each Party expressly waives any and all rights which it
may have under the provisions of Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, which

provides:
A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know

or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if
known by him must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.

7.2 ELF Release of Settling Defendants. In further consideration of the promises and

agreements herein contained, and for the payment to be made pursuant to Section 3.1, ELF, on
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behalf of itself, its past and current agents, representatives, attorneys, successors and/or assignees,
and in the interest of the general public, hereby waives all ri ghts to institute or participate in, directly
or indirectly, any form of legal action addressing all claims occufring on or before the entry of this
Consent Judgment, and releases all claims occurring on or before the entry of this Consent
Judgment, including, without limitation, all actions, causes of action, in law or in equity, suits,
liabilities, demands, obligations, damages, costs, fines penalties, losses or expenses, including, but
not limited to, investigation fees, expert fees and attorneys’ fees of any nature whatsoever, whether
known or unknown, fixed or contingent against each of the Settling Defendants and each of their
customers, owners, parent companies, corporate affiliates, subsidiaries and its respective officers,
directors, attorneys, representatives, shareholders, agents, and employees arising under Proposition
65, Business and & Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq., and Business & Professions Code §§ 17500
et seq., related to each Settling Defendant’s alleged failure to warn about exposures to or
identification of lead contained in Wine Vinegars.

ELF, on behalf of itself, its past and current agents, representatives, attorneys, successors
and/or assignees, and in the interest of the general public, and the Settling Defendants further agree
and acknowledge that this Consent Judgment is a full, final, and binding, resolution of any violations
occurring on or before the entry of this Consent Judgment by each of the Settling Defendants and
each of their customers, owners, parent companies, corporate affiliates, subsidiaries and its
respective ofﬁcérs, directors, attorneys, representatives, shareholders, agents, and employees, of
Proposition 63, Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. and Business and Professions Code
§§ 17500, et seq., that have been or could have been asserted for the failure to provide clear and
reasonable warnings of exposure to or identification of lead contained in Wine Vinegars
manufactured, imported, distributed, and/or sold by a Settling Defendant.

In addition, ELF, on behalf of itself, its attorneys and its agents, waives all rights to institute
or participate in, directly or indirectly, any form of legal action addressing all claims occurring on or
before the entry of this Consent Judgment, and releases all claims occurring on or before the entry of
this Consent Judgment against the Settling Defendants arising under Proposition 65, Business &
Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq. and Business & Professions Code §§ 17500 et seq., related to
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each of the Settling Defendants’ alleged failure to warn about exposures to or identification of lead
contained in the Wine Vinegars and for all actions or statements regarding the alleged failures to
warn about exposures to or identification of lead contained in the Wine Vinegars made by each of
the Settling Defendants or its attorneys or representatives, in the course of responding to those
alleged violations of Proposition 65, Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq., or Business &
Professions Code §§ 17500 et seq., as alleged in the Complaints.

It is specifically understood and agreed that, as to future potential claims, ELF and the
Settling Defendants intend that each Settling Defendant’s compliance with the terms of this Consent
Judgment will resolve all issues and liability, now and in the future, concerning such Settling
Defendant’s compliance with the requirements of Proposition 65, Business & Professions Code
§§ 17200 et seq., and Business & Professions Code §§ 17500 et seq., as to lead in Wine Vinegars.
An In-State Retailer or Distributor’s provision of warnings in a manner authorized in Section 2 of
this Consent Judgment shall also hereinafter constitute compliance by such In-State Retailer or
Distributor with the requirements of Proposition 65, Business and Professions Code §§ 17200,
et seq. and Business and Professions Code §§ 17500, et seq., as to lead in Wine Vinegars
manufactﬁred, imported, distributed or sold to them by the Settling Defendants.

7.3  Release of ELF. Each Settling Defendant waives all rights to institute any form of
legal action against ELF or its attorneys or representatives, for all actions taken or statements made
by ELF and its attorneys or representatives, in the course of seeking enforcement of Proposition 65,
Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq. or Business & Professions Code §§ 17500 et seq., in
this Action.

8. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

8.1  This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter to implement this Consent

Judgment.
9.  COURT APPROVAL
9.1 If this Consent Judgment is not approved by the Court, it shail be of no force or effect

and cannot be used in any proceeding for any purpose.
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10 ENFORCEMENT

10.1 Before moving to enforce the terms and conditions of this Consent Judgment with
respect to an alleged violation, ELF must follow these procedures;

(a) Inthe event that ELF and/or its attorneys, agents or assigns, or any other person acting in
the public interest under Health & Safety Code § 25249.7(d) identify one or more retail stores in
California owned and operated by a Retailer Defendant at which Red Wine Vinegars are sold
(hereinafter “retail outlet™) for which the warnings required under Section 2.2 of this Consent
Judgment are not being given, or identify one or more In-State Distributors or Retailers to whom
warnings materials required under Section 2.3 of this Consent Judgment have not been provided,
ELF or such person shall notify, in writing, within 15 days of the date ELF was informed or
observed the violation, the Settling Defendant of such alleged failure to warn (the “Probationary
Notice of Default”). The Probationary Notice of Default shall be sent to the person(s) identified
pursuant to Section 13 herein, and must be served within fifteen (15) days of the date the-alleged
violation(s) was or were observed. The Probationary Notice of Default shall, at a minimum, set
forth the date(s) the alleged violation(s) was observed, the retail outlet(s) in question, and shall
identify the Red Wine Vinegars giving rise to the alleged violation(s) and describe the alleged
violation(s) with sufficient detail to allow the Settling Defendant to determine the basis of the claim
being asserted and the identities of the Red Wine Vinegars to which those assertions apply. The
Probationary Notice of Default shall allege all violations that could have been raised with respect to
each retail outlet in question as of the date of the Probationary Notice of Default.

| (b) In the event the Settling Defendant corrects the alleged default(s) within sixty (60) days
of receiving the Probationary Notice of Default, ELF or the notifying person shall take no further
enforcement action with respect to such viclation(s).

(c) In the event that the Settling Defendant fails to cure and correct the defauit(s) within sixty
(60) days of receiving the Probationary Notice of Default from ELF or the notifying person, the
Settling Defendant shall pay, pursuant to Health & Safety Code § 25249.7(b) to ELF or the notifying
person, as a stipulated penalty for failure to remedy the alleged default(s), in the event of a notice of
default being issued to a Retailer Defendant, the collective amount of one thousand six hundred
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dollars ($1,600) for each retail outlet which was the subject of the Probationary Notice of Default
(and in the event of a notice of default being issued to a Supplier Defendant, the collective amount of
one thousand six hundred dollars ($1,600) for each in-state distributor or retailer which was the
subject of the Probationary Notice Of Default) and where the alleged default(s) were not remedied
by the time such stipulated payment is due.

(d) In the event the Settling Defendant wishes to contest the allegations contained in any
Probationary Notice of Default served under this paragraph, it shall notify ELF or the notifying
person of such in writing within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Probationary Notice of Default.
The Settling Defendant may provide any evidence to ELF or the notifying person in support of its
position. In the event that, upon a good faith review of the evidence, ELF or the notifying person
agree with the Settling Defendant’s position, no further action shall be taken. In the event the
Settling Defendant provides documentary evidence, and ELF or the notifying person disagrees with
the Settling Defendant’s position, it shall, within thirty (30) days, notify the Settling Defendant of
such and provide the Settling Defendant, in writing, with the reasons for its disagreement.
Thereafter, the parties shall meet and confer to attempt to resolve their dispute on mutually
acceptable terms; if no such resolution results, ELF may seek to enforce the terms and conditions
contained in this Consent Judgment in any State Court in the State of California or ELF or the
notifying person may initiate an enforcement action for new violations pursuant to Health and Safety
Code § 25249.7(d) without regard to the stipulated penalties provided for by Section 10.1(c).

11. GOVERNING LAW

11.1  The terms of this Consent Judgment shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California. In the event that Proposition 65 is repealed or is otherwise rendered inapplicable by
reason of law generally, or as to Wine Vinegars specifically, then the Settling Defendants shall have
no further obligations pursuant to this Consent Judgment with respect to, and to the extent those

Wine Vinegars are so affected.
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12, EXCHANGE IN COUNTERPARTS

12.1 Stipulations to this Consent Judgment may be executed in counterparts and by
facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which, when taken togcther, shall be
deemed to constitute one document.

13. NOTICES

13.1 All correspondence and notices required to be provided pursuant to this Consent
Judgment shall be in writing and personally delivered or sent by: (a) first-class, registered, certified
mail, return receipt requested, or (b) overnight courier on ELF or a Settling Defendant by the others
at the addresses listed in Exhibit F. Either ELF or a Settling Defendant may specify in writing to the
other Parties a change of address to which all notices and other comymunications shall be sent.

14. SEVERABILITY |

If, subsequent to court approval of this Consent Judgment, any of the provisions of this
Consent Judgment are held by a court to be unenforceable, the validity of the enforceable provisions
remnaining shall not be adversely affected.

IT IS SO STIPULATED:

DATED: DM s
Y-
-Niwuna—..‘ 2, e} w}

For Environmental Law Foundation

Name: = Bhan¥ ot

Title: QRATD N
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13. NOTICES

13.1  All correspondence and notices required to be provided pursuant to this Consent
Judgment shall be in writing and personally delivered or sent by: (a) first-class, registered, certified
mail, return receipt requested, or (b) ovemight courier on ELF or a Settling Defendant by the others
at the addresses listed in Exhibit F. Either ELF ora Settling Defendant may specify in writing to the
other Parties a chanée of address to which all notices and other communications shall be sent.
14.  SEVERABILITY

If, subsequent to court approval of this Consent Judgment, any of the provisions of this
Consent Judgment are held by a court to be unenforceable, the validity of the enforceable provisions
remaining shall not be adversely affected.

IT IS SO STIPULATED:

DATED: November __, 2006

By:
For Environmental I.aw Foundation
Name:
Title:
DATED:.W M, 2006
By:
ZEZ
(Signature)

Name (printed): Charles F. Cole
Group Vics President
Litigation anc Regulatory Affairs

Title:

CompanyW:..D A\m*wvx‘s e .
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13. NOTICES

13.1 Aﬂoon&:pondenceandnoﬁoesmquiredtobepmvidedpursumﬁtothiqunm
Judgment shall be in writing and personally delivered or sent by: (a) first-class, registered, certified
mail, return receipt requested, or (b) ovemigixt courier on ELF or a Settling Defendant by the others
at the addresses listed in Exhibit F. Either ELF or a Settling Defendant may specify in writing to the

other Parties a change of address to which all notices and other communications shall be sent.
14 SE ILITY

I, subsequent to court approval of this Consent Judgment, any of the provisions of this
Consent Judgment are held by a court to be unenforceable, the validity of the enforceable provisions

21|

remaining shall not be adversely affected.
IT IS SO STIPULATED:
DATED: November __, 2006
By:
For Environmental Law Foundation
Name:
Peesmhsr 20 Title:
| DATED: Nevember __, 2006
By: /
(Signature)
Name (printed)
$¢. Vios President & Genersl Counsel
Title:
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DATED: December 20, 2006

DATED:

by L (0, o2

(Signature)

Name (printed): ie

Title: Sr. Corporate Counsel

Company: Safeway Inc. and

The Vons Companies, Inc.

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
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o

DATED: DecemberZ% 2006 B W
: Y- .
| o ey Z—

Name (printed): Lachand_ Ham.{
Tie: _Eyecudive., Vice, Presedend)
Company: Wlltams — Sonamnoc

N R T T L

| IT S SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

e
JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
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DEC. 22. 2006 3:28%M WILD CATS LEGAL DEPT NC. 073 P

—

2 ey~

i Name (printed): @Zéf‘ ﬁ @ﬂk{_

s e S VP,,!%S

° C HJE 2;_’_! é

; T Wearicots, Toe.

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

[ B
N -

DATED:_

—
G

It
F -8

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT

MK O NK I T [
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DATED: December 4, 2006

K

(Signature})

Name (printed): géz"feff ﬁ\ Oc OL\
Title: Jﬂ' ’f"’(é- /’ﬁ%fha‘rf
Company: //74 s é (OC@//V é‘*}/ff"?

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

DATED:

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
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DATED: December g 2006

Neme (printed): emncfer W-Cralh
Tite: Geanneral Counsel ¢ ,Swr_a,taf/

Company: Q&/f&.’l ’J-

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

DATED:

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
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DATED: December® ©2006 / M
By: Z /

(Signature)

Name (printed):’zow L‘

I

Title: Qﬁkl&, Coma.\

WMovrison+ e
Company: ‘ a the-

S e S

anghtll Ness a ¥

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

DATED:

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT

wrd
% Movvison +Foereter UP (ntends to prvide e G
with addihonel signature pages comy leted b«a, each of

"W\b Qu\o\ohex De_:(av\&mik‘s pr\br-\o ‘HM.'Caur‘l"s lnwa

on PlanhiHls -Fo('\'hcomizg wothon fov A:WVM\ o'F

s Proposed comew\'c) 3wuon+.
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DATED: December _, 2006
By:

(Signature)

Name (printed):

Title:

Company:

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

DATED:_

JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
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EXHIBIT A: WARNING SIGN

CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65
WARNING:

The Red Wine Vinegars and Balsamic
Vinegars on these shelves contain lead, a
chemical known to the State of California to
cause birth defects or other reproductive
harm

OR

CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65
WARNING:

The Red Wine Vinegars and Balsamic
Vinegars on this shelf contain lead, a
chemical known to the State of California to
cause birth defects or other reproductive
harm

SF/21693540,5 254493.1



EXHIBIT B: INSTRUCTIONS TO DISTRIBUTORS

RE: Court-ordered Proposition 65 Warnings for Red Wine and Balsamic Vinegars Sold in
California

Dear Red Wine or Balsamic Vinegar Distributor:

Important materials for your retail customers, concerning the need to provide court-ordered
warnings for certain red wine and balsamic vinegars are attached to this letter. You must send the
enclosed materials (both the attached instructions and signs) to each of your retail customers that
sells red wine and balsamic wine vinegars in California.

These materials are being provided by suppliers of red wine and balsamic vinegars as part of
a court-approved settlement of a legal action brought under Proposition 65 (California Health &
Safety Code section 25249.6) by the Environmental Law Foundation (“ELF”). In this legal action,
ELF claimed that wine vinegars contain lead. Lead is a chemical known the State to cause birth
defects or other reproductive harm, and ELF claimed that manufacturers, importers, distributors, and
retailers of these products are legally required to provide consumers with a clear and reasonable
warning of this exposure to lead. The companies sued disputed these claims, and maintained that any
lead present in red wine and balsamic vinegars is naturally occurring, reduced to the lowest level
feasible, and not present in a significant amount, but have agreed to take various actions to settle the
case.

If you do not send these materials to your California accounts as directed, yourisk legal
action in which monetary penalties and attorneys’ fees could be sought.

The red wine and balsamic vinegars that are the subject of this notice may be sold legally,
including in California, because they comply with all applicable federal and state standards for food
safety.

Not all red wine and balsamic vinegar suppliers are participating in this court-ordered
warning program. Suppliers that are not participating in this program may be providing wine
vinegars that require Proposition 65 warnings. You should contact your suppliers to determine if
they are in compliance with Proposition 65, since failure to comply could subject you to the legal
actions referred to above.

If you need more signs to cover your California accounts, contact [name and telephone
number and/or email address] and they will be sent to you.

Sincerely,

SF/21693540.5 254493.1



EXHIBIT C: INSTRUCTIONS TO RETAILERS

RE: Court-ordered Proposition 65 Warnings for Red Wine Vinegars Sold in California

Dear Red Wine or Balsamic Vinegar Retailer:

Important material concerning the need to provide court-ordered warnings for certain red
wine and balsamic vinegars is attached to this letter. It is very important that you read and follow
these instructions.

Enclosed are signs for posting in your California store(s) if you currently sell any red wine
or balsamic vinegars. You must post this sign on the top shelf of any rack of shelves in your
California store(s) where red wine and/or balsamic vinegars are sold, or on the shelf where the red
wine and/or balsamic vinegars are sold. You may use the sign as is (i.e., on heavy cardboard stock)
or you may reprint it in another medium (e.g., in the form of a decal or a plaque). The signs you post
must contain the same language and format as the enclosed signs and must be no smaller than
2.25 inches x 5.5 inches. You must also ensure that the signs are, at all times, posted where
required, legible and in good condition.

These materials are being provided by suppliers of red wine and balsamic vinegars as part of
a court-approved settlement of a legal action brought under Proposition 65 (California Health &
Safety Code section 25249.6) by the Environmental Law Foundation (“ELF™). In this legal action,
ELF claimed that wine vinegars contain lead. Lead is a chemical known the State to cause birth
defects or other reproductive harm, and ELF claimed that manufacturers, importers, distributors, and
retailers of these products are legally required to provide consumers with a clear and reasonable ,
warning of this exposure to lead. The companies sued disputed these claims, and maintained that any
lead present in red wine and balsamic vinegars is naturally occurring, reduced to the lowest level
feasible, and not present in a significant amount, but have agreed to take various actions to settle the
case.

If you do not post these signs in your California stores as directed, you risk legal action in
which monetary penalties and attorneys’ fees could be sought,

The red wine and balsamic vinegars that are the subject of this notice may be sold legally,
including in California, because they comply with all applicable federal and state standards for food
safety.

Not all red wine and balsamic vinegar suppliers are participating in this court-ordered
warning program. Suppliers that are not participating in this program may be providing wine
vinegars that require Proposition 65 warnings. You should contact your suppliers to determine if
they are in compliance with Proposition 65, since failure to comply could subject you to the legal
actions referred to above.

If you need more signs to cover all of your California stores, contact [name and telephone
number and/or email address] and they will be sent to you.

Sincerely,

SF/21693540,5 254493 1



EXHIBIT D: ANNUAL REMINDER TO DISTRIBUTORS AND RETAILERS

This is to remind you that the sale in California of virtually all red wine and balsamic
vinegars must be accompanied by certain warnings pursuant to California’s unique Safe Drinking
Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (better known as “Proposition 65”). These warning
requirements apply to all retail stores located in California. In addition, distributors of red wine and
balsamic vinegars must pass on information about compliance with the warning requirements to
their customers. We previously provided you with shelf signs and instructions for effectuating these
warning requirements. Failure to provide warnings as required could subject your company to
significant monetary penalties and attorneys’ fees. If you have any questions about the specifics of
the warning program, or need additional shelf signs, you should contact [name and telephone
number and/or email address].

SF/21693540.5 254493.1
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EXHIBIT F: ADDRESS LIST FOR NOTICES

For Environmental Law Foundation;

James R. Wheaton, Esq.
Environmental Law Foundation
1736 Franklin Street, Ninth Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

For Albertsons, Inc.;

Daniel S. Day, Esq.
Legal Department
250 Parkcenter Blvd.
Boise, Idaho 83726

For Raley’s:

Jennifer H. Crabb, Esq.
General Counsel

Raley’s Corporate Office
PO Box 15618

500 W. Capitol Ave.
Sacramento CA 95852

Alan M. Caplan

Bushnell, Caplan & Fielding, LLP
221 Pine Street, Suite 600

San Francisco, CA 94104

J. Robert Maxwell, Esq

Rogers Joseph O'Donnell

311 California Street, 10th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104

Thomas A, Evans, Esq.

Reed Smith LLP

1999 Harrison St., Suite 2400
Oakland CA 94612

For Ralphs Grocery Company Bell Markets, Cala Foods, Inc., The Kroger Company, and

¥nter-American Foods:

Steve Prough

Corporate Attorney
Ralphs Grocery Company
P.O. Box 54143

Los Angeles, CA 90054

For Safeway Inc. and The Vons Companies Inc.:

Valerie Lewis, Esq.
Safeway Inc.

5918 Stoneridge Mall Road
Pleasanton, CA 94588-3229

For Wild Oats Markets, Inc.

Freya Brier, Esq.

Wild Oats Markets, Inc.
3375 Mitchell Lane
Boulder, CO 80301

Lisa A. Cole

Thelen Reid Brown Raysman & Steiner LLP
225 West Santa Clara Street, Suite 1200

San Jose, CA 95113

Trenton H. Norris
Bingham McCutchen LLP
3 Embarcadero Center
San Francisco, CA 94111

Trenton H. Norris
Bingham McCutchen LLP
3 Embarcadero Center
San Francisco, CA 94111

SF/21693540.5 254493.1



For Williams-Sonoma, Inc.:

Kathleen A. McCarthy, Esq.

- Williams-Sonoma, Inc.
3250 Van Ness Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94109

Trenton H. Norris
Bingham McCutchen LLP
3 Embarcadero Center
San Francisco, CA 94111

SF/21693540.5 2544931



For Supplier Defendants, respectively and as applicable:

Company Name:

Contact Person:

Address:
Telephone:
Fax:
Email:
With a copy to:
Michele B. Corash and Robert .. Falk
Morrison & Foerster LLP

425 Market Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
Tel. 415-268-7000

Fax 415-268-7500

Email: Mcorash@mofo.com and Rfalk@mofo.com
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